
MEMORANDUM 

TO: Town Council  

FROM: David E. Cox, Town Manager  

DATE: February 18, 2021 

SUBJECT: Agenda Information – 2/23/2021 

The following is additional or summary information regarding matters on the upcoming Town Council 
Agenda.  The numbering below follows the agenda and some routine or self-explanatory items are not 
discussed in this memo.  As you review your packet materials, please do not hesitate to contact the 
appropriate staff member or me prior to the Council meeting with any questions or concerns.  Often, 
these conversations can help staff and me be prepared for the Council meeting and be ready to facilitate 
a more productive and efficient meeting for everyone.  

7 Resolutions/Ordinances/Policies/Proclamations 
7a Consideration of an Amended Police Department General Order – Police Chief Woessner has 
provided information and will present regarding an amendment of the Department’s General Order 
regarding drug testing.  Updates have been made to this existing order in compliance with the recent 
changes in State Statute and in accordance with the requirements of the Police Officer Standards and 
Training (POST) Council. 

Recommended Action: Approve the General Order. 

7b Resolution Regarding Release of Revisionary Interest – When the Town acquired the property 
on which the Cobalt Fire Station (Company 2) sits, the property was received with a condition that if the 
Town stopped using the property for a fire house or related use, the property would revert back to the 
original owner or the heirs.  Representatives of the original owner have reached out to the Town and 
offered to remove the revisionary interest condition on the property thereby allowing the Town to use 
or dispose of the property in any manner it sees fit.  While there have been no discussions regarding 
discontinuing use of the property for fire-related activities, it would be appropriate to eliminate this 
condition of ownership.  After discussion regarding the process with the Town Attorney, it has been 
determined that the Council has the authority to accept the release without review by other bodies as 
the Town already owns the property.  As such, the Council is asked to accept the release via resolution 
after which staff would work with the representatives to effect the release and record the appropriate 
documents. 

Recommended Action:  Approve the Resolution accepting the release of revisionary 
interest. 



Town Council - Agenda Information – 2/23/2021 
February 18, 2021 
Page 2 

8 Continued Business 
8a Consideration of a motion to appropriate funds to Chatham Health District – At its February 9, 
2021 meeting, the Council indicated a willingness to share a portion of the Town’s Coronavirus Relief 
Fund (CRF) grant with the Chatham Health District to cover its overruns related to addressing the 
pandemic.  The action by the Council called for a recommendation by the Board of Finance as required 
under Town Code.  The Board of Finance reviewed the request by Chatham Health District for support of 
unfunded expenses, which are expected to be approximately $93,000 in the next six months.  The Board 
of Finance has recommended that the Town allocate $19,368.20 from the Town’s unanticipated CRF 
grant to the District as a one-time additional payment.   Based on that action and the Town Code, the 
Council is asked to adopt a motion to appropriate $19,368.20 to the Chatham Health District from 
unanticipated Coronavirus Relief Fund grant revenue as recommended by the Board of Finance. 

Recommended Action:  Approve the aforementioned motion. 

9 New Business 
9a Discussion and possible action related to use of 94 Main Street by the Board of Education – 
The Board of Education will be considering a proposal from the Superintendent to use the vacant Town-
owned building at 94 Main Street (former Board of Education offices) for the District’s Transition 
Program and its IT Department.  Relocation of these functions to the 94 Main building will allow the 
spaces they currently occupy at the High School and Memorial School to be used for more appropriate 
school-related uses.  In addition to these new uses, the property would continue to be used for storage 
by the District and the Parks and Recreation Department and there would be some space in the building 
for additional offices if that need arose.  As noted in the material from Superintendent Smith, the 
operational expenses of the building would revert back to the Board of Education and the Parks and 
Recreation and Public Works Departments would continue to handle the grounds and parking lot 
maintenance.  The Council is asked to determine whether this use of the building is acceptable or 
whether it wishes to pursue an alternative use or sale. 

Recommended Action: Approve the Board of Education use. 

9b Discussion of an action plan for 1 Watrous Street  - The Council is asked to consider how it 
wishes to proceed with the clean-up and sale of the Town-owned property at 1 Watrous Street, which is 
an environmentally challenged site in the Village Center.  A separate memorandum on this matter is 
included in the agenda materials and the Council is asked to discuss whether it wishes to proceed with 
an RFP process to engage a partner developer to assist with the clean up and redevelopment/reuse of 
the property. 

Recommended Action: Initiate a discussion. 

The remainder of the items are of a routine nature, in the sole purview of the Council or are 
announcements.  Please contact me or the appropriate staff member with questions or concerns. 



Town Council Regular Meeting 1 2/9/2021 Minutes 

Town of East Hampton 

Town Council Regular Meeting 

Tuesday, February 9, 2021 

Virtual Meeting via Zoom 

MINUTES 

Present: Chairman Pete Brown, Vice Chairman Dean Markham, Council Members Tim Feegel, 

Derek Johnson, Barbara Moore, Mark Philhower and Kevin Reich and Town Manager David Cox. 

Call to Order 

Chairman Brown called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

Adoption of Agenda: 

A motion was made by Ms. Moore, seconded by Mr. Reich, to adopt the agenda as written. Voted 

(7-0) 

Approval of Minutes 

A motion was made by Mr. Reich, seconded by Mr. Johnson, to approve the minutes of the Town 

Council Regular Meeting of January 26, 2021 as written.  Voted (7-0) 

Public Remarks 

None 

Presentations 

None 

Bids & Contracts 

None   

Resolution/ Ordinances/ Policies/ Proclamation 

a) Discussion and Consideration of an Amendment to the Police Department Uniform

Standards and Dress Code General Order/Policy

b) Discussion and Consideration of a Police Department Mental Health Wellness Checks

General Order/Policy

c) Discussion and Consideration of a Police Department Employee Assistance Program

General Order/Policy

d) Discussion and Consideration of an Amendment to the Police Department Code of Conduct

General Order/Policy

Police Chief Dennis Woessner provided an overview of the changes to the Uniform Standards and 

Dress Code and the Code of Conduct and presented the new General Orders for Mental Health 

Wellness Checks and the Employee Assistance Program.   

A motion was made by Mr. Philhower, seconded by Mr. Johnson, to approve General Order 2.9 

Uniform Standards and Dress Code, General Order 8.10 Mental Health Wellness Checks, General 

Agenda Item 3a



 

Town Council Regular Meeting  2 2/9/2021 Minutes  

Order 8.11 Employee Assistance Program and General Order 4.3 Code of Conduct, as presented.  

Voted (7-0) 

 

Continued Business 

Discussion Regarding a Potential Town Code Amendment Concerning Hunting on Town Land 

Mr. Cox provided an overview of the past discussion regarding hunting on town land. Mr. Philhower 

spoke about the benefit of allowing hunting of waterfowl to control the geese population. 

 

A motion was made by Mr. Markham, seconded by Ms. Moore, to postpone this item indefinitely.  

Voted (7-0) 

 

Discussion of Allocating a Portion of the Coronavirus Relief Funds to the Chatham Health 

District 

Mr. Cox reported that the Chatham Health District Board met, and the member towns have agreed 

to the 20% portion of their Coronavirus funds to be distributed to the Chatham Health District. 

 

A motion was made by Mr. Markham, seconded by Mr. Philhower, to appropriate 20% of the Town’s 

COVID funding to Chatham Health District pending a recommendation from the Board of Finance.  

Voted (7-0) 

 

New Business 

Discussion and Consideration of an Amended Job Description for the Prevention Coordinator 

The Prevention Coordinator position is ready to be advertised.  The job description is being updated 

to ensure that it outlines the obligations of the current grant and allows for other grant funded 

activities.  The Prevention Council has reviewed and approved the new version of the job description. 

 

A motion was made by Ms. Moore, seconded by Mr. Philhower, to approve the amended job 

description for the Prevention Coordinator as presented.  Voted (7-0) 

 

Town Manager Report 

Mr. Cox provided an overview of the Town Manager’s Report, which will be included with the 

minutes filed in the Town Clerk’s Office.  He also reported that the Annual Report is complete and 

will distributed soon and put on the Town website.  Mr. Cox spoke with WFSB news regarding snow 

expenses noting that the department is on budget and he gave kudos to the Public Works staff and 

appreciates their efforts during snow operations.   

 

Mr. Markham noted a concern about lake front properties and the revaluation.  Mr. Cox noted he is 

going to have a Revaluation presentation for the Council. 

 

Appointments 

The Appointments Sub-Committee will meet on Thursday, February 11th for interviews of new 

candidates for boards and commissions. 

 

Tax Refunds 

A motion was made by Mr. Philhower, seconded by Mr. Johnson, to approve tax refunds in the 

amount of $20,031.73.  Voted (7-0) 

 



Town Council Regular Meeting 3 2/9/2021 Minutes 

Public Remarks 

None 

Communications, Correspondence & Announcement 

None 

Adjournment 

A motion was made by Mr. Reich, seconded by Ms. Moore, to adjourn the meeting at 7:15pm.  Voted 

(7-0) 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Cathy Sirois 

Recording Clerk 



Agenda Item 7a















Agenda Item 7b



12 
I 

VOL. 7.2 

To all People ~o wh.~JB ~es~ ~rese ts shall come, • Greeting: 
Know Ye, THAT I, Reuben E. Ostergren,, 

of the Town ot East Hampton 
.. 

County of Middlesex s· te of Connecticut · .,fortheconaiderati~~~t 

One doll~ and other val~~~ ~~~~idaf at1oi: ~ but les~i thalLfeJc~~ecPH, ~ ~ull 
satWactlonofChathamFire Association,. ric., a corpc>ration of the -state of 
COiineeticut~ · looa.ted 1n the Town ot e.at Hampton, County of lli<ldlesex and 

. State Gt Connect1out,, · · · · · · · 
do give, grant, bargain, sell and confirm unto the anid : hatham Fire Aescic1S. t1on, Inc.~ 
a·cel't1n .. p1eoe or percel. 'ot 1and. el!"ted in the V11Uge · ot' ·oobait,, Tow ot . 
Ea:lt RamptOn. and County ot Middle sex and ::?ts.to ot Cozmecticut,, bounded and / 
described as. follo~s: .. . . . . . _. . .-. .. .. _ . _ . .. 

MOBTHERLY .foi-t7-four :(44) teet by··o ·er land of said Reuben E.- Ostergren 1 
ea1.d line being e1ghteea (18) .t'eet North of 'thEI North f'C):i.m.dat1on 
'W&.11 of the tire hoWJe on the pr emt a ea; . · · 

EAS'IERLY one hundred forty-tow (144) · t'eet bJ other land of the gi>antor, slid 
line being twelve {12) feet East of the East toundat1on wall ot 
said build~.• 

SOUTHERLY i'orty-.foUl' C44i feet by St!te High.way Route 6A;. and 
'WESTERLY one hundred .f'ort7-tour (l4 ) .teet by other land of the granto;r,. 

by a line six (6) feet Wes of the Weat fotm.dation wall. ot aaid 
bui1d1ng. . 

Said prem:ll!les are to used as the :iit for a tire bQ!HJ~_"nth its usual 
appurtenances only, e.nd in the event said use 1saill!Ht4fltl~or one year said. 
land &ball revert to the grantoi" or b.1s heirs. · 

. I 
Being a pwtlon of the trend :ses conv yed to tb.e grantor by Char1ea Tibbals 
as ot record. 

To lhve and to Bold, the above granted and ~ed prembes, with the appurtenances thereof, unt.o . 1 t 
the said grantee 1 ta I 

heirs and aasfgns forever, to 
1 t and their own proper UBe anJi behoot • .And also. l ' ~said grantar do :for my aelt 

111'1 , heirs, executors and administratorsJ covenB.11t with Uie aaid grantee 1 ts 

heira and.assigns, tJiat at and until the ensea.ling of these presents I. am well seized of the premises,.., 
a good indefeasible eatate in fee Bimple, and have good Mt to bargain and aell the same in maDJler and form as is ahov~ 
written, and th.at the same is free from all encumbranc what.,oever. 

A.nd FrutMnrt.ore, I the said grantor 
my 
heirs forever to WARRAN'r AND DEUEN»the above grim 

gn.ntee 1ta 

by these presenU! bind my self and 

and b;i.rpin~ pft.mises to : 1 t theaald 

heirs and assigns against all claims and demands whatsoever. 

In Witnen Whereoj, I 
dayof September 

h&vehereunto et 'IJ'f3' hand 8lld seal this ·28th 
intheyearo ·ourLo~ nineteen ~undred and t1t'ty-three. 

Sitr1Url, aealedi.. <ind delivered in fJ1'6861UJe of 
u. A. Carlson .· 
J. V • B0\9man . 

State of C11naectWn1, Middle aex 

Pel'S®-ally appeared, Reuben E. Oster gl'en 

and eeeler ot the foregoing instrument, and acknowl 

ReceivedforReoord Septe?»ber 29,. 1953 

Reuben E. Ostergren (L.S.] 
[L,S.J 
[L. B,) 

:Portland, September 28~ .4.D.19 53 

the aazne to be bi.a f~ act and deed, betAlreme. 

D. A. Carlson ::abwcf;iuaJ ''*Ji 
Ciztrimrix'i.,,..,,.. .. a.)' . ~ 

Notaf71 Public. 

,at 3 h 00 m P • M., and recorded by me. 

~~/;(a· TownClerlc. 

.ll . 

I 

.1 

Book: 72 Page: 12 Seq: 1 of 1 



37 
WARRANTEE DEED No. 114 (10 Pt.· 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~· 

Cleaveland Legal Blank Service, Inc. 
Hartford, Connecticut 

To all People to whom these Presents shall come, Greeting: 
.·. 

KNOW YE, THAT Chatham E'ire Association, Inc., a corporation organized 
and existing under the laws of the 'State of. Connec'ticut and l.ocated in 
the Town of East Hampton, County of Middlesex and State of Connecticut, 
acting herein by its 
hereunto duly authorized, 
for the consideration of one 01: more dol.lars, 

received to its full satisfaction of the Town of East Hampton, a Connecticut 
municipal corporation having its territorial limits within .the Town of 
East Hampton, County of Middlesex and State of Connecticut, 

does give, grant, bargain, sell and confirm unto tbt said Town of East Hampton, its 
successors and assigns forever, 

A certain piece or parcel of lane with the buildings thereon 
and appurtenances thereto situated in the Village of Cobalt, To_wn 
of East Hampton, County of Middlesex and state of Connecticut, and 
being bounded and described as follows: 

Northerly 

Easterly 

Southerly 
Westerly 

forty-four (44) feet by land now or formerly of 
Reuben E. Ostergren, sa.:i.d line being eighteen 
(18) feet North of the North foundation wall of 
the fire house on the premises; 
one hundredforty-four (144) feet by land now or 
formerly of Reuben E. C1stergren, said line being 
twelve (12) feet East :if the East foundation wal.l 
of said building; 
forty-four (44) feet b~r State Highway Route 6A; and 
one hundred forty-four (144) feet by land now or 
formerly of Reuben E. Ostergren:, by a line six (6) 
feet West of the West foundation wall of said building. 

Being the same premises acquired b:<l' the Chatham Fire Association, 
Inc., by warranty deed from Reuben E. Ostergren: dated September 28, 
l.953 and duly recorded ~n the East Hampton Land Records. 

Said premises are subject to a restriction rel.ating to its 
use as a fire house contained in said deed. 

~Conveyance Tax collected 

·Vd:uu A 511 /ld4 · 
~ 1_] . Town Clerk of East Hampton" 

0 

c-1. 
LJ 

0 

D 

J 



[ 

[ ' 
; 

Pl u 

D 

[ 

To Have and to Hold the above granted and bargained premises, with the appurtenances 

thereof, unto it the said grantee , its lmh>s, successors, and assigns forever, to its 

and their own proper use and behoof, And also, it the said grantqr <lees for 
· and assigns, 

i i§el f its ~:1t~xadnalni~:iamlx:successoi:_o/ covenant with the said 

grantee , its ~ successors, and asnigns, that at and until the ensealing of these presents, 

it is well seized of the premi~K·s, as a good indefeasible estate in Fee Simple,- and has 

good right to bargain and sell the same in n1anner and form as is above written and that the same 

is free from all incumbrnnces whatsoever, •:xcept as here.inbefore mentioned. 

And Furthermore, it the said grar:tor does by these presents bind it sel f and 
successors and assigns 

it~ kW..S forever to Warrant and Defend the above granted and bargained premises to it 

the said grantee , its koiFS, successors, and assigns, against all claims and demands what-

soever, except as hereinbefore mentioned. 

In Witness Whereof, Chatham Fire Association, Inc., has caused these 
presents to be executed in its corporate name and behalf and its 
corporate seal to be affixed hen~to by 

lrn:xxxlul'l:W.tU.·(1<~ :h~X this 

Signed and Delivered in the presence of: 

:;214:~.?1.:.-l.~'.!.'<5:~ .. :.,.t;<:'..~.~·.>J. ................... .. . 
I ,., 

7.?.~ ... '7:~ ....................... . 

ss. 19 

Personally Appea.re 

Signer(s) of the fo~egoing Instrument, and~ same to be 
free act and deed, before me. ------

STATE OF CONNECTICUT, l 
COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX ( ss. East Hampton, 3 I 19 77 

'--. \. ! I "\. . ,,.J IJ.,,) 
f°;<!.av, c. ; s : . vJ rt- I s h ;r . ., • ~..-: · ., 

, as aforesaid, Signer of the foregoing f ~~· 
acknowledged the same to be l, i •:, free act and deed as such 'x !~~;'•.:'. 

and the free act and deed of said~poration/par1met~1\\5'e~..[ 

Grantees' Address: .................. ~;.1..< ....... .;t,J.?.?~~R ~· 
N~~!!;) J. <1 Peace/ Commissiontl' of S11pu1w;, 

Personally Appeared 

NOTAHY rvnuc 
My Com11 •• ~~iv11 LApiru March 31, 198\ 

...................... flEC]l,~~f°:~R~~:~mlN,.Cf, 
ON fy1;i 1 
Attest: PAULINE I.. MARICH.AM. Tawn Clerk 

377 





1"=31'

Company 2

The information depicted on this map is for planning purposes only.
It is not adequate for legal boundary definition, regulatory 
interpretation, or parcel-level analyses.

2/18/2021 11:22:48 AM

Scale is approximate
Scale:

366 W High Street - Route 66
Company 2



Agenda Item 9a





 Office of the TOWN MANAGER 

DAVID E. COX 
dcox@easthamptonct.gov 

TOWN COUNCIL 

James Brown 
Chairperson 

Dean Markham 
Vice Chairman 

Tim Feegel 

Derek Johnson 

Barbara Moore 

Mark Philhower 

Kevin Reich 

1 Community Drive, East Hampton, CT  06424  |  860.267.4468 tel    |   860.267.1027 fax   |   www.easthamptonct.gov 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Town Council 

FROM: David E. Cox, Town Manager 

DATE:  February 18, 2021 

SUBJECT:  1 Watrous Street 

The Town has owned the property at 1 Watrous Street since about April 2016.  
During its ownership, the Town has removed a water tower, provided basic 
clean up and secured the structure at the site.  The property was listed for 
sale in 2019 and remains on the market today ($225,000) despite the 
broker’s listing agreement having expired.  In 2020, the Town received a 
grant through the Connecticut Brownfield Land Bank to undertake 
environmental review of the property.  The environmental reviews have been 
completed and the Council is being asked to consider a process for moving 
ahead with clean up and sale/reuse of the building. 

History 
Property records of the Town indicate that the structure was built in 1927.  
However, it is likely that the initial portions of the building were actually 
constructed in the late 1800’s.  Over the years, the building has been used for 
various manufacturing and service businesses but eventually fell into 
disrepair and became delinquent on taxes.  The Town acquired the property 
through tax sale in 2016.  After acquiring the property, the Town cleaned it of 
debris and made the initial attempt to market it for sale. 

Environmental Review 
In coordination with the Connecticut Brownfield Land Bank,  Phase I and 
Phase II environmental review of the property was performed as was a more 
detailed Hazardous Building Materials review of the structure.  Those reports 
have been distributed to the Council previously.  As expected, those reviews 
identified various contaminants and pollutants in the soils and in the 
building including PCBs, asbestos and lead paint.  The Land Bank is 
currently developing an estimated cost for remediation of the environmental 
issues at the site.  As of today, the estimate for building remediation only is 
approximately $160,000.  Based on costs to date for work on 13 Watrous, I 
believe the Town could estimate as much as $500,000 to remediate the 
entire property before it can be reused.  I anticipate that the Town will have 
access to various grants that can be used to aid in remediation of the 
environmental issues at the site.  Those grants will come with some expense 
by the Town. 

Agenda Item 9b



Town Council – 1 Watrous Street 
February 18, 2021 
Page 2 

1 Community Drive, East Hampton, CT  06424   |   860.267.4468 tel    |   860.267.1027 fax   |   www.easthamptonct.gov 

Potential Sale 
While the property was actively marketed, the Town received a few inquiries 
on the property and staff met with at least two separate interested parties.  
One party has made an offer well below the Town’s listed price and, as part of 
the offer, showed a potential appearance for the structure, which would be 
used for unspecified commercial activity.  Knowing that there are significant 
anticipated remediation costs along with major expenses to repair and 
update the building for reuse, the party was told that any decision on how the 
Town wished to move forward would be delayed.  In addition, given the 
uncertainties of the site and the potential costs, it is important to understand 
the financial ability of a new owner to undertake those efforts in the context 
of an overall plan so that the Town can benefit from a redevelopment rather 
than being in a position to retake ownership of the property in the future.  
Additionally, it is likely important to the Town that it know what the future 
plan for the property might be and what the anticipated likelihood of success 
for the future activity is.  Also, a redevelopment plan for 1 Watrous Street 
could include development of the 13 Watrous Street property as a single 
project meeting the needs of both the Town and the potential developer.  
Such an option should be explored as well. 

Request for Proposals 
As such, I am recommending that the Town undertake a Request for 
Proposals (RFP) process related to the future development of the site.  Such 
process would include solicitation of proposals that include discussion of the 
proposed reuse of the building and related development of the 13 Watrous 
site along with the terms of a transaction that would likely include Town 
involvement in the clean-up and some financial involvement by the 
developer along with an assessment of the financial capabilities of the 
developer.  I know that the Town has attempted disposal of property by RFP 
in the past without much success.  I believe we can build on that effort and 
utilize the contacts that have been made regarding the property as well as the 
efforts of the real estate professional to solicit interest that will give the Town 
the opportunity to actively understand and control the future of the site. 

If the Council agrees with this approach, staff and I will work with 
appropriate Town Boards and Commissions as well as appropriate grant-
awarding agencies to develop an RFP that will be used to solicit proposals 
that address, at minimum: 
 Potential reuse of the building
 Potential development of the extended site including 13 Watrous
 A proposed near term and long term financial arrangement including

support of the Town’s grant efforts, support of remediation costs,
building/site redevelopment, off site or extended site development
and future joint use of the site, sale of the building/site.

 Financial abilities of the developer



Town Council – 1 Watrous Street 
February 18, 2021 
Page 3 

1 Community Drive, East Hampton, CT  06424   |   860.267.4468 tel    |   860.267.1027 fax   |   www.easthamptonct.gov 

 Potential future financial support from the Town

Those proposals would be reviewed by a committee to be selected in the 
future and may also be subjected to review by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission or other Town bodies.  Ultimately, a vote of the Town Meeting 
would determine the fate of a sale. 

DC 



1"=62'

1 Watrous Street

The information depicted on this map is for planning purposes only.
It is not adequate for legal boundary definition, regulatory 
interpretation, or parcel-level analyses.

2/18/2021 11:20:22 AM

Scale is approximate
Scale:

1 Watrous Street

13 Watrous Street
Town Owned.



Agenda Item 12



BOARD AND COMMISSION SUMMARY 
JANUARY 2021 

Arts & Culture Commission 
The Arts & Culture Commission met on January 21 via Zoom.  One grant application has been 
received for the $500 grant.  The grant deadline is April 1.  No applications have been received 
for the $200 Capstone grant.  Ms. Sennett spoke with the Town Manager’s Office about the 
hardware needed for the Art Gallery.  Commission members agreed a COVID Creative exhibit 
highlighting creative accomplishments by members of the community would be a worthy idea 
to pursue.  The Goff House Concerts are expected to begin at the end of June for six 
Thursdays. 

Board of Finance 
The Board of Finance met on January 19 via Zoom for their regularly scheduled meeting. No 
action of note was taken. Discussion items included 2020 Audit results and continued 
discussion on a BOE non-lapsing account for unexpended funds.   

Brownfields Redevelopment Agency 
The Brownfields Redevelopment Agency met on Monday, January 25 via Zoom.  The 
members were updated on items being worked on within the town including water and the 
St. Clements new banquet hall construction. The members discussed the properties at 1 
Watrous Street, 13 Watrous Street, and 3 Walnut Avenue. The members also received an 
update on the power point presentation for the Town Council. The information and 
documents are being collated and included into the power point. It should be finished for the 
March 9th meeting. 

Clean Energy Task Force 
The Clean Energy Task Force met on Tuesday, January 5. Jessica LeClair from Sustainable 
CT presented to the members about the organization. There are 160 towns that are registered 
with the organization with 61 towns becoming certified and 1,855 actions being completed. 
There is a 6-step process that has to be completed to enroll in the organization. A resolution 
and project plan must be written up and approved by the Town Council to start the 
enrollment process. The members made a motion to come up with a resolution for the Town 
Council to approve to join Sustainable CT. The members discussed getting John Hall for the 
February meeting and John Greeno for the March meeting as presenters. The members also 
discussed the power plant down the river. Their generator system will be redone and will be 
blowing smoke pollution into town. The members want to talk with the contact person, John 
Greeno, about this upcoming problem. 

Commission on Aging 
The Commission on Aging met on Thursday, January 14 via Zoom.   The members received 
an update on the progression of the vaccine roll out.  They discussed the Senior Center budget 
and will write a letter in support of a full time assistant.  They began discussions of a 2021 
Round Table.  The Housing Authority Director has been invited to the February meeting. 

Agenda Item 14a



Conservation-Lake Commission 
The Conservation-Lake Commission met on Thursday, January 14 via Zoom.  The members 
performed five plan reviews. The members discussed the budget for next year and the 
watershed projects under the grant. There was discussion on the topics under old business 
such as the review of the RFQ for Lake Limnologist, the sub-committee report on education, 
the advisory panel update, the lake smart program, and the lake level. 
 
Design Review Board 
The Design Review Board met on Thursday, January 21 via Zoom.  The members discussed 
and approved/recommended two plan reviews for 249 West High Street for a new gas station 
and for 97 Main Street for Po’s Rice and Spice for new parking area, deck, and sight 
improvements. The members briefly discussed the new signage plan for the Gulf gas station 
in the Village Center. They contacted Jeremy DeCarli about an update, but there hasn’t been 
a response yet.  
 
Economic Development Commission 
The Economic Development Commission met on Tuesday, January 19 via Zoom. The 
members discussed the Bells on the Bridge Project, the business package promotion and 
tourism, reviewed the approvals and minutes from the last Planning and Zoning meeting, 
new business banner locations, Belltown Spotlight on Business, and the town beautification. 
The members also received an update from the Town Manager regarding the vaccination 
process for employees and the public.  
 
Ethics Commission 
No meeting  
 
Fire Commission 
The Fire Commission met on Monday, January 11 via Zoom. The Fire Chief presented the 
members with equipment that needed replacing. The members approved of the equipment 
purchases. The members also discussed purchasing an online training model to fill in for in-
person training. Since COVID-19 the in-person trainings dropped due to proximity and 
number of attendees. The Fire Chief and Fire Marshal gave their reports to the members. The 
members also discussed updates for the dry hydrants, the AC upgrade, and discussed the 
budget for the next fiscal year. The members approved of the proposed fire lane for 101 Main 
Street and discussed the contact people for the NFIRS reports for the state. The members 
nominated the Fire Chief and Marty Swan as the contact people.  
 
Inland Wetland Watercourses Agency 
The Inland Wetland Watercourses Agency met on Wednesday, January 27 via Zoom. 

Continued Applications:  
A. IW-20-034:  John Uliano, 29 Pocotopaug Dr., To construct a pool and 2 retaining walls 

within the Upland Review Area.  Map 25/Block 64/Lot 20A-1.  Approved 
B. IW-20-035:  Edgewater Hill Enterprises, LLC., East High St., to construct Salt Pond 

Apartments (40 units); a phase of the Edgewater Hills Master Plan.  Map 10A/Block 
85/Lot5C.  Approved. 

C. IW-20-039:  Donald Ballsieper, Navajo Trail, New home construction with the Upland 
Review Area.  Map 09A/Block 74/Lot 167.  Approved. 

D. IW-20-040: Cary L. Gagnon, 5 Boulder Road, to install bike trails and wooden bridges 



in the wetlands and upland review area.  Map 03A/Block 44/Lot 23F.  Approved. 

New Applications: 
A. IW-21-001:  Steve and Diane Lanney, 13 Sears Lane, to construct a new single-family 

home within the Upland Review Area.  Map 04A/Block 63B/Lot 10.  Continued. 
B. IW-21-002:  Mary Ann Hubert, 68 Spellman Point, to enlarge existing deck by 4’ within 

the Upland Review Area.  Map 09A/Block 70/Lot 9. Agent Approval 

Public Hearings:  

A. IW-20-036:  Connecticut Contractors Group, LLC., Daniel Street, Subdivision.  Map 
13/Block 51/Lot 1.  Approved 

Joint Facilities 
The Colchester –East Hampton Joint Facilities Board met on January 19th via Zoom.  The 

Joint Facilities committee reviewed and discussed the recommended operating and revenue 

budget for 2021/22 fiscal year. Any changes or corrections will be made at the February 16, 

2021 meeting.  There was a force main break off River Rd. in Colchester. Repairs were made 

the same day with limited damages. Mr. Clayton presented a video inspection of the 

Middletown Avenue pump station (MAPS) showing the mechanical workings of the pump 

station.  

Library Advisory Board 
The Library Advisory Board met on Monday, January 4 via Zoom.  The members discussed 
the Library budget.  They also discussed and approved the revised Circulation Policy.  This 
will be forwarded to the Town Council for final approval.  The Library received a $1,000 
donation from the Community Foundation of Middlesex County.  There are no restrictions 
on the gift other than it be used for something fun as soon as possible. 

Middle Haddam Historic District Commission 
The Middle Haddam Historic District Commission met on Thursday, January 28 via Zoom. 
The members reviewed and discussed a plan review for replacing existing windows with 12 
over 12 double-hung insert windows. The applicant joined the zoom meeting to present and 
answer questions for the commission members. The application was approved of as 
presented. The members discussed the new proposed zone change in the historic district.  

Parks & Recreation Advisory Board 
The Parks & Recreation Advisory Board met on Tuesday, January 5 via Zoom.  The members 
discussed the Master Plan goals and objectives and the timeline.  They were also updated on 
upcoming programming.  They were updated on the budget and capital projects. 

Planning & Zoning Commission 
The Planning & Zoning Commission met on Wednesday, January 6 via Zoom. 
Public Hearings 

A. Application PZC-20-025: Z Incorporated / Cobalt Health Care, 29 Middle Haddam Rd., 
for a Special Permit and Site Plan Modification for a 2698 sq. ft. addition. Map 
01C/Block 9/Lot 7.  Approved with conditions 

B. Proposed Text Amendment to Sections 2.2, 4.2, 4.3, 4.4 and 8.4 to allow Veterinary 



Clinics in the R-2, R-3 and R-4 Zones. Approved with changes 
C. Application PZC-20-023: JCG Properties, LLC., 9 Middle Haddam Rd., for a Zone 

Change from R2 to Commercial for approximately 5 acres to operate a veterinary clinic. 
Map 01C/Block 9/Lot 5. Applicant withdrew application 

 
New Business: 

A. Application PZC-20-024: Paula Free, 249 West High St., for a special permit per Sec. 
8.4 Motor Fuel Filling Station for a proposed convenience store. Map 06/Block 
12/Lot 1B. Public hearing set for February 3rd. 

B. Application PZC-20-026:  Long Hill Estates, LLC., Long Hill Estate Subdivision, for 
a Zone Change R-2 to C.  Map 06/Block 12/Lot 8. Public hearing set for February 3rd. 

C. Application PZC-20-027:  Connecticut Contractors Group, LLC., Young/Daniel Street 
Subdivision.  Map 13/Block 51/Lot 1. Public hearing set for February 3rd. 

 
Town Facility Building Committee  
The Town Facility Building Committee met on Thursday, January 7 via Zoom. The members 
received updates for the architect, construction manager, and the OPM for the project. The 
AV is 95% installed. In the Council chambers, the original monitors were removed, and new, 
slightly bigger monitors were installed. This issue is being investigated and a solution will be 
discussed. The members approved of one change order and didn’t approve of the other 
change order. The members also approved of one invoice and tabled the other two invoices.  
 
The Town Facility Building Committee met on Thursday, January 28 via Zoom.  The 
members discussed open items.  They also discussed a change order that will be brought to 
the next meeting regarding a glass change.  It was also noted that CT Water has approved a 
change to a 2” meter for water.   
 
Water Pollution Control Authority  
The Water Pollution Control Authority Board met on January 5 via Zoom.  The reduced 
interest rate option on delinquent revenue payments mandated by Executive Order 2020-7S 
due to the Covid-19 pandemic is still in place. This is low interest rate program at a rate of 
.25% for taxes, water and sewer bills.  Mr. Clayton reported on two (2) new possible 
subdivisions. One located near Long Hill Rd and their probability in connecting to sewer and 
the second is five (5) apartment buildings which will be located behind the Town Hall. 
 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
No meeting. 




